GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

4500 Hessel Road - Sebastopol, CA 95472
Phone (707) 823-1084 - Fax (707) 829-1175 - www.goldridgefire.org

Serving the communities of Hessel, Twin Hills, Freestone, & Rural Sebastopo!
Fire Chief Shepley Schroth-Cary

For safety reasons this GRFPD Board Meeting will be held virtually.

Gold Ridge Fire Protection District Regular Board Meeting Teleconference Information:
From your computer, tablet or smartphone: meet.google.com/gdd-zevu-skg

You can also dial in using your phone: (US) +1 304-988-5128 PIN: 118 273 011#

NOTICE & AGENDA OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
December 2, 2020 - 7pm
Location: Virtual Meeting

Assistance for the disabled: If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate
in the meeting, please call the Board Clerk at least 48 hours in advance at (707) 823-1084 so the
necessary arrangements can be made.

1) CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2) ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

3) PUBLIC INPUT: At this time, members of the public may address the Board with any item
not appearing on the agenda. It is recommended that you limit your comment to 3 minutes
or less. Under State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted

upon by the Board at this time.

4) APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING:
a) November 4, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes (Action Item)

5) CORRESPONDENCE: Review of any correspondence that might have been received
after distribution of Board packet.

6) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL REPORTS:
a) November 2020 Bank Accounts Register (Action ltem)

S
Regular Board Meeting Agenda December 2, 2020 Page 1




7) REPORTS:
a) OPERATIONS REPORTS
) Equipment maintenance
if) Building mainienance
i) Personnel
b} TRAINING REPORT
¢) FIRE MARSHAL REPORT
d) FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATIONS
¢) EXPLORER POSTS
f) FIRE CHIEF REPORT

8) OLD BUSINESS:
a) Gold Ridge Paid Firefighters Association MOU (Discussion/Action ltem)

9) NEW BUSINESS:

a) ALS presentation, arrangement with AMR (Discussion/Action ltem)
b) Purchase of new Type 3 Engine (Action Item)

10) GOOD OF THE ORDER:

11) ADJOURNMENT:

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
after the distribution of the agenda & packet are available for public inspection in Fire Station 1
office at 4500 Hessel Road during normal business hours.

Regular Board Meeting Agenda December 2, 2020 Page 2




GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

4500 Hessel Road - Sebastopol, CA 95472
Phone (707) 823-1084 - Fax (707) 829-1175 - www.goldridgefire.org

Serving the communities of Hessel, Twin Hills, Freestone, & Rural Sebastopol
Fire Chief Shepley Schroth-Cary

November 4, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes

1) Call to Order: The Regular Meeting of the Gold Ridge Fire Protection District was held
via teleconference. The meeting was called to order at 7:00PM by Director Gloeckner.

2) Roll Call of Directors: Robert Gloeckner Joe Petersen
Mike Doyle Christopher Tachouet
Dominic Carinalli (7:30) Charlie Lachman
Directors Absent: Steve Petrucci

3) Public Input: None

4) Approval of the Minutes from Previous Meeting: The minutes from the September 2,
2020 regular meeting were reviewed. A motion was made by Director Lachman to
approve the minutes. The motion was seconded by Director Tachouet and passed
unanimously.

5) Correspondence: Fire Chief Schroth-Cary shared some correspondence from LAFCO
received after the posting of the meeting. LAFCO has announced opening on their
board, Leslie will send information to directors.

6) Approval of the Financial Reports: The revenues and expenses for the month of
September and October were reviewed and discussed. Director Doyle made a motion to
approve the September 2020 Bank Accounts Register Report. The motion was
seconded by Director Petersen and passed unanimously. Director Tachouet made a
motion to approve the October 2020 Bank Accounts Register Report. The motion was
seconded by Director Petersen and passed unanimously

7) Reports:

a) Operations Report:
i) Equipment Maintenance: See attached report from Assistant Chief Pforsich
i) Building Maintenance: See attached report from Assistant Chief George
iy Personnel: Chief Schroth-Cary reported on behalf of BC Schipper that we will be

moving to a 24-hour stipend shift for interns and volunteers.
b) Training: Nothing to report.
c) Fire Marshal’s Report: See attached report from BC DeCarli

d) Firefighters Associations: Lieutenant Heaton reported that the association will
hold position elections at their next meeting.

Gold Ridge Fire Regular Meeting Minutes November 4, 2020 Page 1



e) Explorer Post: Chief Schroth-Cary reported that Tom was in the process of renewing
our Explorer post.

f) Fire Chief’s Report: Fire Chief Schroth-Cary summarized the strike team response
during the busy fire season we had, he gave a brief ALS update, and brought up the
idea of giving years of service awards in lieu of the holiday party this year.

8) Old Business:

a) Long Range Committee Update: Nothing to report.

9) New Business:

a) Board review of the Gold Ridge Paid Firefighters Association MOU. Engineer
Garrett presented this first reading of the MOU. A discussion ensued regarding
vacation use, vacation caps, and payouts. A second reading and possible board
approval slated for next meeting.

b) Board discussion about adopting impact fees for the district. A discussion ensued.
Item will be explored further.

10) Good of the Order: None

11) Adjournment: There being no further business, Director Carinalli made a motion to
adjourn the meeting at 8:25PM. The motion was seconded by Director Lachman and
passed unanimously.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Leslie McCormick

Robert Gloeckner, Chair Steve Petrucci, Director
Charles Lachman, Director Domenic Carinalli, Director
Joe Petersen, Director Christopher Tachouet, Director
Mike Doyle, Director Date Approved

e —
Gold Ridge Fire Regular Meeting Minutes November 4, 2020 Page 2



November 2020 Board Report
Submitted by Andy Pforsich

We've been challenged to keep up with services and repairs to engines committed to strike
teams all summer. All three water tenders sustained body damage on fires. 8191 sustained
damage while evacuating a seriously injured firefighter on the Walbridge Fire, 8192 sustained
damage on an incident in Forestville, and 8193 sustained damage on an incident in Monte
Rio. Some repairs have been completed and all others are scheduled. Utility 8142 sustained
body damage on the Glass Fire while BC DeGraffenreid was executing a rescue of a

resident. The engine also failed but was limited to a collapsed [ifter and was repaired, all
totaling about $10,000, With five years of service life remaining, it was a worthwhile expense.

On another note, Shep and [ have discussed a proposal to accelerate the purchase of a Type 3
engine which will be on the agenda next month for action. Ordinarily we purchase an engihe
every Lhiee years within the replacement program. We skipped a rotation between 2011-2017
due to the pressing need to purchase breathing apparatus and install solar on two stations. We
had three Type 3 engines out during the summer due to extensive fire activity, one being 8163
which is 26 years old. We’d also like to get 8161 to Station 3 for lesser use due to mechanical
issues we've experienced with the Maxx Force 9 engine in that unit.

We're expecting to receive over $350,000 in engine rental revenue just this season. Rosenbauer
has quoted a tag-on cost of $385,000, good through the end of December, an increase of 5%
per year which is very fair, with the first payment not due until 8/1/22. This will strengthen our
apparatus reliability and depth to face increasing demand. And the best part is we've had the
personnel available, mostly volunteer, to support the demand.



November 2020 Board Report
Submitted by Dan George

Station 1 and 3 painted, he will come back and complete the upper soffit at station 1
and the rental next door

Landscape complete at station 1, will be adding steel barrels for planting and finishing
the water line

Got all the info to the Mike who is doing the drawings for all 3 stations

Dealing with parcel tax issues the most of them are zero value that got charged and a
few are the multiple parcels less than an acre that need to be adjusted will get info on
the ones we have to county by Friday

Will be working on getting the containers at station Zand 2 painted and finished

We will have a meeting next week on the LAFCO S0l and the new ad hoc from LAFCO
more to follow



November 2020 Board Report
Submitted by Darrin DeCarli

Defensible Space Inspections for 2020 completed. Will be working with County on 4 to
5 parcels to move to abatement process. 205 parcels were assigned. 199 parcels
inspected (unable to access 6 due to locked gates). inspections started on 7/6/20 and
final inspections concluded on 10/27. Due to the fire activity this summer, some of the
re-inspections took longer than anticipated. I'd like to thank Firefighter Tonia Bello for
her efforts in her role of coordinating the program from scheduling te training and
reporting and handling any troubleshooting/IT issues with the County.

Business Inspection program has resumed. The shifts are making contact with our local
businesses to schedule pre-plan inspections. All three shifts will be participating in the
inspection program.

Working with the County on partnering with them on the chipper program. We will
identify staff, similar to the defensible space inspection program that wants fo
participate. The county will provide the training and equipment and our folks would run
the chipper primarily in the west county area. The County would reimburse us for the
labor incurred to staff the chipper.

Fire investigation update- Stuart Baker who has been handling/assisting with fire
investigations for us moved to ldaho in July. Don Silverek is still available to assist with
investigations as necessary and | continue to be available for incidents that occur on A
and C shift.



+ 30 1 a8eyg

GFGO0°LPL £0'PS @suUSdX3 PICYSSNOH - 0BOY 0202 LOO - £029820181 103y upep ewouos ABojosey  $EBY OTOZ/OM | %0840
SFBLLLPL 96'98% Juswidinbg soususURY - OFLO sjoni| uosBled  €E89 QZOZ/0L/LL 84D
o0 L 12'GPL8E -LNds- Il adAL G0/ LGGZ Bal0AU| VN “ueg Jepusiues  ZE89 0Z0Z/0M L oy
69°168'G81 Sr'gl aouruRiURK BulpIing - 08L9 syue} auedosd g aoe|d [BluaY Ayl LE89 OZOZOL/LL ¥o8UD
01'898'G84 12’811 saddrg (edlpsiy - 19Z9 0269r0 JULIsISSY BT 0E80 0Z0ZI0/LL X8YD
Le'one'ssl LT9¥y S[0o |etug - 0889 Zhhaey SUOS % SIHND 'N™ 6280 0Z0OZ/0L/LL #oay0
85'Zer'98) L1L'0Z0') Juawidinbg sousuBUEBR - OtL9 0202 LD0 £96)} 100y 'ou| ‘sped eeq 9289 020204/ L1 P8y
6925F'L8L 00'sEy Buwesy - pziz v2 100 Auedwog CEUSPIoH 'Heuusa L2689 0202/0MLE sy
69°288'/8) 00'000'L SBOIMAS NPNY - 0E9S Buiig ssaaBoid 18Ui4 0Z/6L0Z PNy "OU| ‘SIYBI00SSY pUR UOSUBIOD 9783 OZOZ/0L/ L=
£9°L88'V6) 1L asuadxz ployasnoH - 0809 0202 290100 alempiel (0doISEASS 289 0ZOZ/OL/LL $0840
06°856'v6 1 R elie juawdinby adUBUSILIEY - OF |9 9940% 66905 69805 smeleddy 2114 suopng  $289 020Z/0L/LL %08U0
L€' L0E'GE) 05882 awdo|dwatn - ge6g L-G6Y0-¥P6 BELBILPBR0T aaavd €280 0ZOZ/0LLL %_UD
1 9'9B5'GEL vl'oLo'cz 80JR.NSUL YYBSH - 0EES sumniwald g0z AON va3 Ovad 2289 02020l A8UD
$6'099'81.Z 96'802 Buurel) - 0z 0ZF00-L2uY AUl L 201 and (1) 8B9[0D Jr eSOy BIES |28 0Z0Z/0L/LL AI8YD
16'6/8'8L2 81'882'9 uswdinb3 saueusluiEl - 0FLY Zr18 Bu3 9E0LL "ON O IRd % Apog oIny wosueH Apusy 0289 OZ0Z/0L/LE %847
60'v91'522 00°001 SIUSWSSINGUIRH/SUONBUOG - Z0LY sodag 0202/€0/1L  Hsodag
60'$90'622 00051 sjuswesInguLlaysuolleund - 2oLy nsodaQ gzoz/ieo/lL  wsedeq
60'VL6'¥2E oLl wewloldwap - 6865 yisedaqg 020Z/e0MLL  Wisodeg
80°L6L'V22Z NWWNG - 6Z)1
62°068°5S 8y'9ge'se jueg abueyaxg - gLLL 2104
BZE68'GS 00'62e' L gosLadxg joifed - 016G 02/0g/0L LY 33 ueld L6 SH3ad 8D 133 O0g0/LYLL Ho8YD
BT'aLL'LS YZEPB'L) -1INds- 0Z/08/0) f1oxhed S¥3d 133 0Z0TULUML A08YD
£SL90'GL 00'sze'L sesLedxd olked - 016G DZ/aL/0L L5 93 ueld /6P SYAL 18D 1T 020211111 ¥08yo
£5°982'9L YZePE'LL -1rnds- 02/91/01 josked Sd3ad 143 020LLL $03UD
L1626 Nueg abueyaxy - 0Ll
10°Zet 00'941 ysep Apad jejoL
Lozee 00'SLL su3l3 £S2.pPY - 0098 usodag] 02oZ/LLLL Wsodeq
208t ysen Ajad
souejeg npatD Hgaq Jijds owsy sLueN wnN aeqg adA}

0Z0Z ‘0Ff I2qUISAON JO SE I9)SI893] SIUNOIOY JUeH
IDIIISIA UOII09301] SIL4 SFPTY pron



v Jo g 23eg

£G'020'¥¥FT eP'TL0'2 -1ds- eérli wnaoned Aeg YUUON #5399 0202/0E/1L HosYD
96'30)'0K2 88'28G"1 watudinb3 soueusiuel - 0FL9 LoLg edsy GFeRee SYor| uosielsd €589 D20Z/0EfL) H94D
v8e6e' Ly gZ'LiT wetudinby souBusiUEW - 0L lexoriq usNoug gZle  Buunoeynuely IR0 sA0SSOl  Z098 OZ0Z/0E/LL psi=lce)
0L996'Ly2 999 siueUSUERI OIDEY - %18 PGZLE] AU O sowodg-isniy 1689 QZ0C/ae/LL ¥oaug
G4 '0E0°8YT 00285 -LIds- wswesNquiey Wea | ayug rseq ‘abiosd 0689 0Z0Z/06/11 %340
GLZ65'8vE FAN: K- NA ssuadxg da(] 18UI0 - 0629 soueleq uofjepunad 2|4 J23UN0A 6989 0Z0Z/0E/L) Hoayd
LE'0LE'05 20 /98 poaules Jsauaui .« LOL1 nsodag 020Z/LeiL ) Ysodagy
0R'Ere'epe 00'000'004 SOl uwng - gLl 18jsuel} spung 0202/927LL  Jejsuel]
0g°ehe'6hl 2¥'eGe'e pled |e3 L} nIW GRLE §85C GIPD SEl 190V jueg ‘SN €989 OT0L/Ed/LL H8Yd
2Z°004'8G1 asuadxg 1deq 12u10 - 0629 aoueleq :qIOA UD[EPUNOS BIl4 1BBJUNIOA  8bRO 0Z0Z/EE/LL HosuD
LZ00L'GS | 0o'GLY subig ssa1ppy - 0098 lisodag 0Z0Z/6LILL usodaq
LTG8Z'GS) £6'168' L1 BWYIC- 1S - 00SZ usodag 0Z0Z/6LILL usedag
PEEER'Eh) O v69°L 1MW - AoualBy JuswuanoD - 0162 usodaq TAVA(1 2 usodaq
#6'961'9EL 00°0% sjuswasINquIRY/sucleUod - Z0L usodaQ pzoz/eL/LL  hsodaq
v6'8¥1'9E) 00'29Z'9 soueusjuiel Buppng - 0819 juied jejusy Bhol OpURIOY  LE89 0ZOZ/LLILL ¥ayg
o 0LY'erL ¥L'6F glo0] jelwls - 0889 g0LBEY SUOS B SWIND "N Lp89 020/ L HIBYD
89°09¥'Crl 8L°¢02 sslInn - 0ZeL 0-86Zeea.Lle68y 3%0d  B¥89 0202/6L/1L Ho2U3
oy ee9'zrl £6°'LG s8N - 0ZEL 1-2668241€90 390d  5PED 0ZOT/SLEL Yoy
6E'GLLEP) ¥6'GPL S2IN - 0ZEL 8-2.685892.5 3%0d  PPE9 020T/SLILL 3oRYD
££° 1982k zZe'Ler'e uatdinbg SouBUBIUEN - OFLY 8vL300 204109 anj mepsueg  £p80 020Z/54/11 Y3
glege'orl oe'8Ll sayddng BujessdQ - Lovg L20Z sipuaied JIus bS] aid AunoD BUOUOE  ZP89 DZ0ZSL/IL ¥eyd
SO'ZLY'OPL 00'8s swexy [edlpsy - $599 Asuzams 08252 sjupdlaBuld NVOSTIML  LPED 0Z02/GL/1L 34D
SO0ES'BFL ZE'ES'L sesuadxg saNdwo) - GOFYIERE AU| Z uolels dnag Nd maN (7) Jedsy 1ondion poomNa0T  OP89 0Z0Z/6L/1LL HoBYD
LB'EBO'BYL oo'9 [enesjjuonepodsuRL - 0OEL 0L9/EELL0LLLL yensed  6EE9 0Z0Z/SUIL ¥03UQ
L6'660'8PL SE'LLL usldinbg Aees - 1889 pAN A4 4 soINQUIsI] SAng 8E8Y 020511 19847
[A A NAL ) S¥LoT asusdxg el - 00¥9 sulyoet Adoo 0Z0Z AON  @oueuld Juetudinb yueg sn NEERTATA ] 5 bl i)
LLZ6¥'abL po'osL') slejs] |eay Jousy - L0BL isodaq 020e/0LH iisodag
LLEThLBYL 8SCLL soueuajuiel Buiping - 0819 yZoEL slequny ubls ssalppe subig Jeig uoy  9e80 0Z0Z/0L/}L ¥oaug
piogisispel g oLoLe -11d8- 1B1Y  SE89 0COT/OL/L 8o
sauejeg Hparp yqgact Hids LIITEYT aweN Wy aje(y adAy

0Z0Z ‘0t ISqMIIAON JO S€ I9SIFIY SIUN0I0Y Jueqg
JSIIST( UONYO3303d L] ISP PIoD)



P 30 g adeg

86° L6271} 15855981  TLY0E'BOT lloihed Juung - 211 ejol
96°L6Z' L LG sesuadg ||ohed - 0165 llosheg 022211 N Haqoy "UoMes  GLO0S 0Z0TILEfLL ¥oayd
SLHbEbhl cLLee’l sesuadxg ([0ifed - OLBS [101ARe OZ/LZ/L L uBuA 18led  ¥L0O0S 0Z0Z1LZfLL Hoeyo
gz'seo'srl GE'eH sasuadxg Jloshed - 016G lo2hed 027221 ) ydesop 'sing  €L005 020TLT/LL eyl
£9°L2L a1 geve sasuadxy josked - 0169 llo2heg 0Z/42/) 1 eiuc] ‘oiea@  ZLDOS 0Z0TILE/LE »osyg
86°152 G SZ'G66'7R -1F1dS- lioed OZ/L2/1 L I} 'Suohnog ssausng amieAoul| )43 QZOZ/LT/L) H22yo
€T48/'082 00'000'002 S| MWWnS - ggil Jajsuet] spunj 0Z0Z/SE/LL  ieysuRI]
£T461°08 88'066°9 sosuadxy [loihed - 0165 ksodag 0zZoZELL L Wsodag
68'091'¢E reyLEL sosuadxd jloshed - 0165 0Z/EL/L L Hd ddng - iisodaq ozozielL/LL  usedag
15725¢'22 S p6E'as -LIds- lloifed 0Z/g1/1 L 1l ‘suoinjog ssauieng aajercul] 143 0Z0Z/EL/LL yoaygd
96'ore'LLL 11'9% sasuadxq jjoshed - 0165 lloahed OZ/EL/L ) vomee) 'sUioN {1005 0ZOZ/ELILL 3o8yd
EL'EERLLL 0668 sasuedx]) |jolAed - 016G lloJAed oZrel/L L HlieA 'olidg  0L00S 0Z0Z/EL/LL Hosy3
EO'E86'LLL AN A sesuadxg jjoifed - 0165 foafed 0Zich/LL BIUO] ‘O)j88 000G 0ZOZTISIiLL Aoy
SL'PEL'gLL 79168y -111dS- ddng jjoshed 0z/2 /L) 4 ‘suopn|og ssauisng sajeaoul| 143 0Z0Z/ELiLL Ho8Ug
LL185'TTL lloaked pwwng - gz
86'9¥2'Z8Z LSGR0'GLE  O¥'SEL'EZ) Hwwng - 0214 2301
86'0¥Z'zeZ 00'8g SWEKX] [2OIpaN - #5999 uosulor | L8SE sjupdiaBuld NYOS-NYL 2989 0Z0Z/0E/L1 HoBYD
86'¥0L'2E2 00’569 Bupiel | - 0Z1232-S ssog auibul 0gz-S $508 MaI0 Q uepicH ‘Weuusegd  |989 DZOZ/OE/LL Ao8UD
86'666'2E2 Z9v0T'6 2oueusiuely Buiping - 0819 Z 'BIS 1|2 spaq €500 SweIsAg padiep NOBIN 0989 0202/0€/L1 p oz ile)
09'¥8T'THe o0 0LY Juawdinb3 aoueuSIUIB - OF LG 1918 Mol 60492 'ou| ‘Buimo souelsy 6589 0Z0Z/08/L) Yoeyo
08'¥5L'ZP2 LLEL ISUBdXT JRMBSIDIEM - Z0ZL GH/SL/LL NIULIUNCODE 131eM C# BIS SHIOAN 2|GNd CO BWIOUOS RS8O DZ0Z/087L Ho8YD
LE'9ER'TIE 09'¥rG 5|00] [BWS - ORES uopnjos Buiuesio gaLeslz siossaidwe)) Jeneg /589 0Z0Z/DE/LL pLet=111y)
LBTLE'EVE IR |00, |[BWS - 0889 LG8 SUOS § SIUND N1 9589 0T0Z/08/L L Yoaun
0z 88Y'EPe EE'i¥G wewdinb3g soususuIBK - OFLY 0Z0OZ 1aquisncn OU| ‘sAnooINY 88194  SGRO QZ0Z/0L/LL ¥oeyn
asuejeg P e 3ids oL e W dje(] adA}

0Z02Z ‘0f FIqUIIAON JO Se IDISIFY SPUN000oYy quey
JOTIISIA WOI0IY0IJ L] S8PTY pPIoH



b Jo ¢ adeg

panoiddy sieq

2IUD and *Aed-uyioos Asidsuyg

1enoyoe | Jaydolsuy)

alfog N

IIBLteD) SIUStLog

JaU0a0|) Uagoy

PoNNS] 2Asls

uasiajad eor

UBLIYDET SBHEYD
90 EZL L6} 05°086°6€9 2L'3i9'Les MLOL
PLIsevan't 00°000°D0% ST IUWNG - 971} B30l
FL'258'v90" ) co'oo0'oog o-fed Mnsg - zzLL 18JSUR) ] SpUn.y 020zZiSEILL i|lsuel)
¥LZSE'P9Z'L 00D'000'00L Hung - OZEL Jajsues) spung 0ZOE/SE/LL  M@ISuUBI)
| AT TR SOt HwmuNg - gZLL

soueteg #paid iqeqg Hidas olusi EYTETY, wny 8320 adAy

0T0Z ‘0T IOqUISAON JO S 19)5139Y $Iunodoy Jyueyg
JOLSIQ WOII09301d SII4 93PIY prodH



Gold Ridge Fire Protection District

Cal Card Report

November 2020
Num Name Memo Paid Amount
60 - Services/Supplies
6040 - Communications
Verizon Wireless Nov 2020 776.50
Comcast Station 1 185.86
Comcast Station 2 392.88
Comcast Station 3 40.67
Sonic Net Internet/email services 12.00
apple.com storage plan 0.89
Amazon.com audible 14.95
apple.com storage plan 0.99
Wal Mart speaker for ST 74.50
Beet Buy mic for ST 45,32
Total 6040 - Communications 1,544.66
6060 - Food
Costeo misc
Costco MS office
Hopmonk Lunch with Bill B 49.96
Total 6080 - Food 49.96
6080 - Household Expense
Home Depot household 36.68
Costco misc 415.22
Costco MS office
Total 6080 - Household Expense 451.90
6140 - Maintenance Equipment
Greg's Tires tires for B8 1,000.00
Total 6140 - Maintenance Equipment 1,000.00
6180 - Building Maintenance
Prolighting flag led light 34.11
Amazon.com LED sconces for meeting room 254,35
Amazon.com LED sconces for meeting room (spares) 50.87
Lowe's sta 1 landscaping 86.39
Home Depot stock tanks sta 1 landscaping 417.60
Home Depot sta 1 lanscaping 1398.20
Sebastopol Hardware stock tank sta 1 207.09
Grab n Grow soil sta 1 1298.09
Total 6180 - Building Maintenance 1,317.70

Page 1



Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
Cal Card Report

Novembher 2020
Num Name Memo Paid Amount
6290 + Other Dept. Expense
6848 Volunteer Fire Foundation VOID: Balance 0.00
Supply Cache VFF return -718.74
Total 6290 - Other Dept. Expense -719.74
6400 - Office Expense
Vista Print notecards and envelopes 152.72
Costico misc
Office Depot supplies 21.74
Total 6400 - Office Expense 174.46
6405 - Computer Expenses
Costco MS office 89.99
Total 6405 - Computer Expenses 89.09
6880 - Small Tools
Amazon.co leak stop 58.43
Home Depot drill and screw drivers 212.02
Total 6880 - Small Tools 270.45
7201 - Gas/Oil
Gas 3T fuel - 8182 347.56
Gas ST fuel - Gino 107.75
Gas ST fuel - DG 95.34
Gas ST fuel - 88 167.22
Total 7201 - Gas/Oil 707.87
7300 - Transportation/Travel
Fastrak Bridge Toll 6.00
Hotel ST Hotel DG 441.19
Hotel ST Hotel SS 1,022.03
Total 7300 - Transportation/Travel 1,469.22
Total 60 - Services/Supplies 6,356.47
TOTAL 6,356.47

Page 2



Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
Split Detail - Operating Account

November 2020
Num Date Nare Memo Account Paid Amount

EFT 14715/2020 US Bank Equipment ... NOV 2020 copy machine 1120 - Summit

NOV 2020 copy machine 6400 - Office Expense -281.45
TOTAL -281.45
6820  11M0/2020 Randy Hanson Auto.. RO No. 11036 Eng 8142 1120 + Surnmit

RO No. 11036 Eng 8142 6140 - Maintenance E... -6,288.18
TCTAL -6,268.18
6821 11M0/2020 Santa Rosa JrCollege  {1) Fire 187.1 Inv AR21-00420 1420 + Summit

{1) Fire 107.1 Inv AR21-00420 7120 - Training -208.96
TOTAL -208.96
6822 111072020 FDAC EBA NOV 2020 Premiums 1120 - Summit

NOV 2020 Premiums 5830 - Health Insurance -23,070.14
TOTAL -23,070.14
6823  11/10/2020 CAEDD 10684768736 944-0495-1 1120 - Summit

L0684768736 944-0495-1 5935 - Unemployment -289.50
TOTAL -289.50
6824  11M0/2020 Burton's Fire Apparat... 50669 50699 50766 1120 - Summit

50869 50699 50766 6140 - Maintenance E... -348.41
TOTAL -348.41
6825  11/10/2020 Sebastopol Hardware  Octoher 2020 1120 - Summit

Qctober 2020 6080 « Household Exp... -71.21
TOTAL -71.21
8826  11/10/2020 Goranson and Associ... Audit 2019/20 First Progress ... 1120 - Summif

Audit 2019720 First Progress Bi... 68630 - Audit Services -7,000.00
TOTAL -7,000.00

Page 1



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

6827 117102020 Bennett, Holden D Company Officer 2A 1120 - Summit

Company Officer 2A 7120 - Training -435.00

TOTAL -435.00
6328 11/10/2020 Lake Parts, Inc. Acct: 11963 OCT 2020 1120 - Summit

Acct: 11963 OCT 2020 6140 - Maintenance E... -1,020.11

TOTAL -1,020.11
6829 11/10/2020 L.N. Curtis & Sons 436442 1120 - Summit

435442 6880 - Small Tools -446.27

TOTAL -446.27
6330  11M0/2020 Life Assist Inc 1046920 1120 « Summit

1048920 6261 - Medical Supplies -118.21

TOTAL -118.21
6831 11M0/2020 The Rental Place 3 propane tanks 1120 « Summit

3 propane tanks 6180 - Building Mainte... -16.45

TOTAL -16.45
8832  11M/2020 Santander Bank, N.A.  Invoice 2551705 Type I 1120 - Summit

Invoice 2551705 Type IlI 7910 - L.T. Debt Princi... -27,795.40

Invoice 2551705 Type Il 7930 - L.T. Debt Interest -10,349.81

TOTAL -38,145.21
6833  1110/2020 Peterson Trucks 1420 - Summit

6140 - Maintenance E... -586.96

TOTAL -586.96
6834  11/10/2020 Recology Scnoma M... Acct: 1810286203 - OCT 2020 1120 - Summit

Acct 1810286203 - OCT 2020 5080 - Household Exp... -54.03

TOTAL -54.03

Fage 2



Num Date Name Memo Account Pald Amount

6835  11/10/2020 AT&T 1420 - Summit

56680 6040 - Communications -43.31

54008 60440 - Communications -166.79
TOTAL -210.10
6836  11M0/2020 Ron Blair Signs address sign numbers 13024 1120 - Summit

address sign numbers 13024 6180 - Building Mainte... -112.58
TOTAL -112.58
6837 11M7/2020 Rolando Moya Rental paint 1120 - Summit

Rental paint 6180 - Building Mainte... -8,262.00
TOTAL -6,262.00
6838 11/15/2020 BWS Distributors 442832 1120 - Summit

442832 65881 - Safety Equipment -111.35
TOTAL -111.35
6839  11/15/2020 Fastrak T717017337610 1120  Summit

T717017337610 7300 - Transportation/... -6.00
TOTAL -6.00
6840 111512020 Lockwood Computer... {2) New PC Setup statfon 2 In... 1120 - Summit

{2) New PC Setup station 2 Inv ... 8405 - Computer Expe... -1,563.82
TOTAL -1,563.92
6841 11#15/2020 TRU-SCAN Fingerpri... 25780 Sweeney 1120 - Summit

25780 Sweeney 6654 - Medical Exams -58.00
TOTAL -58.00
6842 114512020 Sonoma County Fire... Shift Calendars 2021 1120 - Summit

Shift Calendars 2021 6461 - Operating Supp... -118.90
TOTAL -118.90

Page 3



Num Date Name Memao Account Paid Amount

6843  11/15/2020 Benedetti Tire £04402 604743 1420 - Summit

604402 604748 6140 - Maintenance E... -3,491.82
TOTAL -3,491.82
6844  11/15/2020 PG&E 57268535972-8 1420 - Summit

5726858572-8 7320 - Utilities -145.94
TOTAL -145.94
6845  14/15/2020 PG&E 06317289921 1120 - Summit

0631728892-1 7320 - Utilities -51.93
TOTAL -51.93
6846 111572020 PGSE 4997833296-0 4420 - Summit

4997833286-0 7320 - Utilities «202.78
TOTAL -202.78
6847 11/15/2020 L.M. Curtis & Sons 439106 1120 - Summit

438106 6880 - Small Tools -49.74
TOTAL -49.74
6848 11/23/2020 Volunteer Fire Found... VOID: Balance 1120 » Summit
TOTAL 0.00
6349 11/30/2020 Volunteer Fire Found... Balance 1420 « Summit

Balance 6290 - Other Dept. Ex... -1,618.12
TOTAL -1,618.12
6850  11/30/2020 George, Daniel . Strike Team Reimbursement 120 - Summit

mileage for Sheep, Trimmer, a... 7300 - Transportation/... -50.00

food for Sheep, Trimmer, and ... 6080 - Food -512.00
TOTAL -562.00

Page 4



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

£851 11/30/2020 Musi-Tronics LLC Inv, 197254 1120 - Summit

Inv. 197254 6149 - Radio Maintena... -66.65
TOTAL -68.65
6852 11/30/2020 WMossey's Metal Manu... 3128 broken brackst 1120 - Summit

3128 broken bracket 6140 - Maintenance E... -271.26
TOTAL ~-271.26
6353 1173012020 Peterson Trucks 228245 Repair 8161 1120 - Summit

228245 Repair 8161 6140 - Maintenance E... -1,683.88
TOTAL -1,583.88
6854 11/30/2020 North Bay Petroleum 1149 1120 » Summit

Station 1 gas/diesel delivery 7201 - Gas/Oil -494.94

Station 2 gasidiesel delivery 7201 - Gas/Cil -1,577.48
TOTAL -2,072.43
88585 14430/2020 Pete's Automotive, Inc. November 2020 1120 + Summit

November 2020 6140 - Maintenance E... -547.33
TOTAL -547.33
6856 41/30/2020 L.N. Curtis & Sons 441851 1120 : Summit

441851 6880 - Small Tools -118.23
TOTAL -116.23
6857  11/30/2020 Bauer Compressors 273188 cleaning soiution 1120 - Summit

273168 cleaning solution 6880 - Small Tools -544.60
TOTAL -544.60
6858 11/30/2020 Sonoma Co Public W... Sta #3 water account thru 11/... 1120 - Summit

Sta #3 water account thru 11/1... 7202 - Water/Sewer E... 7377
TOTAL -73.77

Page §



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

6859 11/30/2020 Reliance Towing, Inc. 28709 tow 8161 1120 - Summit

28709 taw 8161 6140 - Maintenance E... -470.00
TOTAL -470.00
68860 1173072020 Mack Wallbed Systems 6053 beds at Sta. 2 ) 1120 - Summit

86053 beds at Sfa. 2 6180 - Building Mainte... -9,284.62
TOTAL -9,284.62
8861 11/30/2020 Bennetit, Holden D Crew Boss §-230 Engine Bos.., 1120 - Summit

Crew Boss S-230 Engine Boss ... 7120 - Training -685.00
TOTAL -6895.00
6862  11/30/2020 TRU-SCAN Fingerpri... 25811 Johnson 1120 - Summit

25811 Johnson 5654 - Medical Exams -58.00
TOTAL -58.00
6853 11/23/2020 U.S. Bank Acct 4246 0445 5565 3785 thr... 1120 - Summit

Acct 4246 0445 5565 3785 thru... Cal Card -6,356.47
TOTAL -B6,356.47

Page 6



Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
Split Detail - Payroll Account

November 2020
Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

EFT 11/12/2020 Innovative Business... 11/12/20 Payroll Supp 1122 - Summit Payroll

11/12:20 Payroll Supp 5910 - Payroll Expenses -4,354.72

111220 Payroll Supp 6540 - Payroll Services -42.90
TOTAL -4,397.62
EFT 1113/2020 Inhnovative Business... 11/13/20 Payroll 1122 - Summit Payroll

11/13/20 Payroli 5910 - Payroll Expenses -72,890.15

11/13/20 Payroll 5922 - FICA Retlirement -1,061.68

1113120 Payroll 5924 - Medicare -3,001.87

11/13/20 Payroll 5810 - Payroll Expenses -18,038.55

11713720 Payroll 6540 - Payroll Services -402,20
TOTAL -95,394.,45
EFT 1112712020 Innovative Business ... 11/27/20 Payroll 1122 - Summit Payroll

1127120 Payroll 5810 - Payroll Expenses -64,543.78

11/27/20 Payroll 5922 - FICA Retirement -516.76

11/27/20 Payroll 5824 - Medicars -2,986.24

11/27/20 Payroll 5310 - Payroll Expenses -16,813.37

11/27/20 Payroll 6540 - Payroll Services -135.10
TOTAL -84,985.25
50009 11/13/2020 Bello, Tonia 11/13/20 Payroll 1122 - Summit Payroll

11713120 Payroll 5910 - Payroll Expenses -171.12
TOTAL -171.12
50010 11/13/2020 Bello, VailR 11/13/20 Payroll 1122 - Summit Payroil

11/13/20 Payroll 5910 - Payroll Expenses -89.90
TOTAL -89.90
50011 11/13/2020 Norris, Cameron 11/13/20 Payroll 1122 » Summit Payroll

11413/20 Payroli 5910 - Payroli Expenses -48.17
TOTAL -46.17

Page 1



Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

50012 1172712020 Bello, Tonia 11127720 Payroll 1122 - Summit Payroll

11/27/20 Payroll 5810 - Payroll Expenses -34.35
TOTAL -34.35
50013 411/27/2020 Bilis, Joseph 11127120 Payrall 1122 » Summit Payroll

11/27/20 Payroll 59810 - Payroll Expenses -92.35
TOTAL -92.35
50014 11/27/2020 Peter, Virgil 11127120 Payroll 1422 - Summit Payroll

11/27/20 Payroll 5910 - Payroll Expenses -1,291.13
TOTAL -1,291.13
500158 1172772020 Sexton, Robert M 11127120 Payroli 1122 - Summit Payroll

11427120 Payrall 5810 - Payroll Expanses -48.17
TOTAL -46.17

Fage 2



Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
Split Defail - Exchange Bank

Novemnber 2020
Num Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

EFT 11/11/2020 PERS Payroll 10/16/20 1110 - Exchange Bank

EE Contribution 5910 - Payroll Expenses -8,779.70

ER Contribution 5923 - PERS -11,163.54
TOTAL -17,943.24
EFT 11/11/2020 Cal PERS 457 Plan EE 457 10/16/20 1110 - Exchange Bank

EE 457 10/16/20 5910 - Payroll Expenses -1,225.00
TOTAL -1,225.00
CFT 1171712020 PERS Payroll 10/30/20 1110 - Exchange Bank

EE Contribution 5910 - Payroll Expenses -6,779.70

ER Contribution 5923 - PERS -11,163.54
TOTAL -17,943.24
EFT 11172020 Cal PERS 457 Plan EE 457 10/30/20 1110 - Exchange Bank

EE 457 10/30/20 5910 - Payroll Expenses -1,225.00
TOTAL -1,225.00

Page 1



Gold Ridge Fire Protection District

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July through November 2020

fncome
10 - Tax Rev
1000 - Prop Tax - CY secured
1001 - Flat Charges -CY
1011 - SB 2557 Prop Tax Admin
1020 - Prop Tax CY sup
1040 - Prop Tax -CY unsce
1042 - Cost Reimb-Coll Def CY Uns
1060 + Prop TaxPY sec
1061 - Flat Charges PY
1070 - 1100 Prop Tx PY unsec
1080 - Property Taxes-PY Supp
Total 10 - Tax Rev
17 - Use of Money/Property
1701 - Interest Earned
1801 - Rent of Real Estate
Total 17 » Use of Money/Property
20 - Intergovernmental Revenues
2440 « 8T-Homeowners Prop Tax Relief
2500 - 8T -Other
2900 + So. Co. Enhanced Services
2910 - Government Agency - MRFD
2920 - Government Agency - NBF
2930 - S0, Co. DS
Total 20 - Intergovernmental Revenues
30 - Charges for Services
3600 - Address Signs
3661 - Fire Control Services
3700 - Copy Fees
Total 30 - Charges for Services
40 - Miscellaneous Revenues
4040 - Cell Tower
4100 - Workers' comp Ins. Refund
4101 - Miscellaneous Revenues
4102 - Donations/Reimbursements
Total 40 - Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Income
Gross Profit
Expense
50 - Salaries/Emp Benefits
5910 - Payroll Expenses
5911 - Extra Help
5912 - Strike Team Payroll Expenses
5913 - Boards
5915 - Overtime
5922 - FICA Retirement
£923 - PERS
5924 - Medicare
5830 - Health Insurance
5931 - Disahility Insurance
5835 « Unemployment
§840 - Workers' Comp
Total 50 - Salaries/Emp Benefits

TOTAL
Nov20 _ Jul-Nov20 _ Budget $ Over budget % of Budget
0.00 0.00 1,667,880.00 -1,667,880.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 1,443,390.00 -1,443,390.00 0.0%
0.00 0,00 -19,755.00 19,755.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00  31,262.00 -31,262.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00  52,482.00 -52,482.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 -30.00 30.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 4,910.00 -4,910.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 846.00 -846.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 -30.00 30.00 0.0%
0.00 D.00 3.160,955.00  -3,180,055.00 0.0%
867.07 1,733.71 4,178.00 -2,444.29 41.5%
1,750.00 8,750.00  21,000.00 -12,250.00 41.67%
2.617.07 10,483.71 _ 25,178.00 14,694 29 41.64%
0.00 0.00  10,380.00 -10,380.00 0.0%
11,391.93 17,371.26 100.00 17,271.26  17,371.26%
0.00 600,000.00 600,000.00 0.00 100.0%
7,694.40 17,624.99  20,000.00 -2,375.01 88.13%
0.00 163,522.08 650,000.00 486 477.92 25.16%
0.00 0.00  10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
18,086.33 _ 798,618.33 1,290,480.00 -491,961.67 51.868%
590.00 590.00 550.00 40.00 107.27%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 15.00 10.00 5.00 150.0%
590.00 605.00 560.00 45.00 108.04%
0.00 7,850.00  18,840.00 -10,990.00 41.87%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
0.00 831.83 1,000.00 -168.17 83.18%
300.00 1,445 48 1,000.00 445.48 144.55%
300.00 10,127.31 _ 20,840.00 ~10,712.69 45.6%
7260340 8190.734.35 4,518,013.00  -3,698,278.65 18.14%
2259340  819,734.35 4,518,013.00 -3,698,278.65 18.14%
186,116.44 1,367,543.33 1,923,824.00 -556,280.67 71.09%
0.00 3,720.00 8,500.00 -4,780.00 43.77%
0.00 0,00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 2,100.00 -2,100.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00  60,000.00 -60,000.00 0.0%
1,578.44 20,685.84 9,957.00 19,728.84 298.14%
22327.08  208707.64  496,934.00 288,226.36 42.0%
5,988.11 41,808.33  28,765.00 13,043,33 145,34%
23,070.14  115,350,70  368,340.00 253,989.30 31.23%
0.00 5,178.00 5,111.00 67.00 101.31%
-427.50 1,010.50 2,000.00 -989.50 50.53%
0.00  45900.00 162,504.00 -116,604.00 28.95%
738,652.71 1,618,004.34 3,069,135.00  -1,250,230.66 59.26%

Page 1of2



60 Services/Supplies
6020 - Clothing/Personal
6040 - Communicafions
6060 - Food

6080 - Household Expense
6100 - Insurance

6140 - Maintenance Equipment

6149 - Radio Maintenance
6180 - Building Maintenance
6261 - Medical Supplies
6280 - Memberships
6290 - Other Dept, Expense
6400 - Office Expense
6405 - Computer Expenses
6410 - Postage
6461 « Operating Supplies
6540 - Payroll Services
6587 - LAFCO Charges
6610 : Legal Services
6630 : Audit Services
66854 + Medical Exams
6500 : Public/Legal Notices
6801 + Newsletter
6380 * Small Tocls
6881 - Safety Equipment
7005 - Election Expense
7120 - Training
7121 - Fire Prevention
7201 + GasiOil
7202 - Water/Sewer Expense
7300 » Transportation/Travel
7320 - Utilities
Total 80 - Services/Supplies
75 - Other Charges
7910 - L.T. Debt Principal
7930 - L.T. Debt Interest
7970 - Taxes/Assessments
Total 75 - Cther Charges
85 - Assets
8510 + Building
8560 - Equipment
Total 85 - Assets
80 - Appropriations
9000 - Contingencies
8010 - Improved Staffing/ALS
Total 90 - Appropriations
Total Expense
Net Income

Gold Ridge Fire Protection District

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July through November 2020

TOTAL
Nov20  Jul-Nov20  Budget & Over Budget % of budget
0.00 3,914.36  12,000.00 -8,085.64 32.62%
1,754.76 10,350.56  20,000.00 -9,649.44 61.75%
561.96 2,710.20 8,000.00 -5,289.80 33.88%
577.14 2,754.92 6,000.00 -3,245.08 45.92%
0.00 20,436.00  20,500.00 -64.00 99.69%
15,607.95 56,055.59  55,000.00 1,055.59 101.92%
85.65 2209.73 5,000.00 -2,700.27 46.0%
16,993,35 3941857  25,000.00 14,418.57 157.67%
118.21 3,050.47 5,000.00 -1,049.53 79.01%
0.00 11,970.00  25,000.00 -13,030.00 47.88%
898.38 151.99 6,000.00 -5,848.01 2.53%
455.91 3,698.35 8,000.00 -4,301.65 46.23%
1,653.91 2.492 64 2,500.00 -7.36 99.71%
0.00 176.37 800.00 723.63 19.6%
118.90 1,27384  10,000.00 -8,726.16 12.74%
580.20 2,870.20 6,500.00 -3,629.80 44 16%
0.00 3,867.00 3,900.00 -33.00 99.15%
0.00 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
7,000.00 7,000.00  12,000.00 -5,000.00 58.33%
116.00 691.45 5,500.00 -4,808.55 12.57%
0.00 254.00 £00.00 -346.00 42.33%
0.00 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
1,427.29 16,007.34  30,000.00 -13,992.66 53.36%
111.35 1,051.67  38,000.00 -36,948.33 2.77%
0.00 0.00  10,500.00 -10,500.00 0.0%
1,338.95 9,736.15  14,000.00 -4,263.85 89.54%
0.00 7.56 1,800.00 -1,792.44 0.42%
2,780.30 16,076.03  25,000.00 -8,923.97 64.3%
73.77 395.54 850.00 -454 46 46.53%
1,525.22 8,404.03 3,700.00 4,704.03 227.14%
40065 1,567.88 7.700.00 -8,132.12 20.36%
54.160.86  220.662.44  360,950.00 ~151,367.56 50.27%
27,795.40 50,285.29  50,994.00 -708.71 98.61%
10,349.81 16,005.97  15,207.00 708.97 104.64%
0.00 234.00 2,715.00 -2,481,00 8.62%
38,145.21 B6,525.26  69,006.00 ~2.4B0.74 96.41%
0.00 0.00  50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00  50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00  100,000.00 -100,000,00 0.0%
0.00 0.00 198,922.00 -108,822.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00  700,000.00 -700,000.00 0.0%
0.00 0.00  898,922.00 ~898,922.00 0.0%
330,958.78  2,115,012.04 4,618,013.00  -2,403,000.96 46.81%
-308,365.38 -1,295,277.69 0.00 -1,295,277.69 700.0%

Page 2 of 2



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between the
Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
And the
Gold Ridge Paid Firefighters Association

Term Expiring December 31, 2021



SECTION 1 EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATION

1.1  The District recognizes the Association as exclusive representatives of employees in
classifications covered by the Memorandum. This Memorandum shall apply fo all
permanent employees working in classifications listed below and to any other
classifications, which may be established within the scope of the duties now included
within these classifications:

I.LIEUTENANT 2. ENGINEER 3. FIREFIGHTER

1.2 The following rules and regulations, as they exist now or as they may be amended
through the meet and confer process, shall be applicable unless superseded by any
provision of the Agreement:

e Personnel rules and Regulations;
e Employer-Association Member Relations Rules and Regulations;
o Fire District Standard Operating Procedures/Guidelines (“*SOP” or “S0OG”).

The District shall not change the rules and regulations listed in this section without first
providing the Association with notice and an opportunity to meet and confer about
matters within the scope of the representation under the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act.

SECTION2 OBJECTIVES

2.1  The purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding is to promote an orderly and
equitable policy for labor-management relations.

2.2 The District and the Association agree not to discriminate for or against any employee
regardless of membership in the Association or because of reasonable activities on behalf
of the Association.

2.3  Both parties recognize their mutual obligation to cooperate with each other to assure
maximum service of the highest quality and efficiency to the citizens of the Gold Ridge
Fire Protection District.

2.4  Term of this Memorandum of Understanding expires on December 31, 2021

SECTION3 WAGES & HOURS



31

32

3.3

34

Salaries

Effective January 1%, 2020, the salaries of all employees covered in the Memorandum of
Understanding shall be as stated in Appendix A, Effective July 1st, 2020, all employees
shall receive a 5% increase in salaries. The basis of these computations shall be as
follows:

3.1.1 Hourly rates for 56-hour employees shall be calculated by dividing an employee’s
annual salary by 2920.

3.1.2 Hourly rates for 40-hour employees shall be calculated by dividing an employee’s
annual salary by 2080.

3.1.3 Salary adjustments: Should the District grant a cost of living increase on an
employee’s base pay, the pay shall be equivalent to the cost of living adjustment
per the State of California Tax Bureau and is to take effect July I¥* of the
following year.

FLSA Work Period

3.2.1 The Gold Ridge Fire Protection District establishes a regular recurring work
period of twenty-eight (28) consecutive days for its fire protection personnel,
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 207(k} of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

The Distriet’s 28-day, 207(k) work period begins at 0800 on July 1, 2017, ends
twenty-eight days later on July 28, 2017 and recurs regularly thereafter.

The FLSA overtime threshold for the District’s 28-day, 207(k) work period is 212
hours. FLSA overtime is based on actual, physical hours worked in excess of the
applicable FLSA threshold. For personrel subject to the 28-day, 207(k) work
period, the FLSA overtime threshold is exceeded when an employee’s actual,
physical hours worked during the 28-day period exceed 212.

Vacation and Sick Leave usage shall not reduce an employee’s entitlement to this
additional compensation.

Overtime

Employees shall be paid overtime in accordance with Section 207(k) of the Fair Labor
Standards Act. Recall assignments shall be determined based on a list that will be
maintained to track recall of full time staff. The purpose of the list will be to assure that
staff receive equal overiime opportunities. Employees may cover either 56hr or 40hr
station assignments if approved by the district to staff the station needing coverage. The
rate of pay for overtime shall be one and one-half times the employee’s hourly rate of pay
inclusive of all applicable incentives. If an employee is working for a different hour
schedule than their normal assignment, their base pay will be converted to the appropriate
pay scale for which they are working.

Recall Pay



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The District may recall off-duty personnel due to significant emergency incidents (fire,
rescue, disasters) and to provide additional on-duty staffing during periods of elevated
conmumunity risk (storms, Red Flag Warnings). Members recalled to duty on regularly
scheduled day(s) off shall be paid at their overtime rate. The minimum compensated
period for recalled staff will be 2 hours for incidents where the on-duty Battalion Chief
has requested staffing.

Jury Duty

No deductions shall be made from the salary of any employee while the employee is on
jury duty, provided the employee shall reimburse the District and compensation received,
less mileage and expenses, received as a juror.

Salary Steps
Salary step increases shall be in one-year increments on the employee’s anniversary date.

In the case of promotions, the employee will receive salary step increases on the
anniversary date of promotion.

This step increase will automatically be applied on the appropriate anniversary ot
promotional date and will not be dependent on pending performance reviews except in
the case where the employee has been subjected to disciplinary action that explicitly
delays or cancels the step increase.

Out of Class Pay

Employees who are approved by the fire chief to work out of classification will be paid at
the first step rate of the higher class position they are temporarily assigned to fill. For
example a Firefighter temporarily assigned to the Engineer position will be paid at the
Engineer step 1 rate for all time worked in that role. Strike team out of class pay is
defined in SOP 1050.

Light Duty and Alternate Duty Assignments

Employees unable to perform their normal work duties may be assigned Light Duty if
requested by the employee and authorized by the Fize Chief.

Employees may be assigned Alternate Duty to meet the needs of the department for
district projects requiring resources beyond the on-duty staff. All alternate duty
assignments are voluntary and must be authorized by the Fire Chief.

Light Duty and Aliernate Duty assignments shall be treated as regular hours worked and
subject to overtime in accordance with Section 207(k).

SECTION 4 STAFFING LEVELS



4.1

4.2

4.3

44

First Right of Refusal

All employees shall have “First Right of Refusal” within classification for all available
shifts.

Shift Trades

The members of the association shall have the right to work shift trades with other
qualified members at no disservice to the district.

The District is not responsible for ensuring trades are paid back: this responsibility solely
rests upon the individuals who are engaged in this practice. Full Shift trade policy is
outlined in SOP 2-05.

Minimum Staffing
4.3.1 The minimum staffing level shall be the following for each staffed station:

e One (1) Company officer: (Lieutenant/Engineer)
e One (1) Driver/Operator: (Engineer/Firefighter)

e The above staffing may be covered by volunteers for short durations until
employees are recalled to fill vacancies that occur during immediate need

engine deployments.

4.3.2 The District will to the best of its ability arrange following additional staffing
when possible for each staffed station:

e One (1) Firefighter (stipend volunteer, or intern)

Station_Bid

P TR Ta— 2021

4.5

4.6

40 Hour Assignments

Employees hired or promoted on or after September 1%, 2019 may be assigned to a 40
hour work week as operationally necessary.

Employees hired or promoted before September 1%, 2019 may only be assigned to a 40
hour work week if said employee agrees to do so.

Out of County Assignment



When on out of county assignment, the district will pay the cost of hotel accommodations
if requested by all other engines of the strike team.

SECTION S GENERAL BENEFITS

The District agrees to provide the following general benefits to employees covered by this
Memorandum of Understanding, subject to the rights and limitations imposed by the California
Public Employees’ Pension reform Act:

8 |

34

Health Insurance

5:1.1

5.1.2

Represented employees of the District and their legal dependents, as defined by
the State of California and the Internal Revenue Service, are eligible to participate
in a group medical plan provided by the District.

Regardless of the plan chosen by the individual employee, the District shall pay
the actual premium charged by the approved health care provider for providing
the coverage to the employees and their dependents under the terms of the plan up
to the following monthly maximum amounts:

Employee with no dependents $689/month
Employee plus 1 dependent $1366/month
Employee plus 2 or more dependents $1776/month

The employee may choose any plan made available to the District. The employee
shall be responsible for paying the difference between the amounts listed in 5.1.2
and the actual cost of the plan selected unless the District agrees to cover any or
all of that cost for all employees. Any difference shall be deducted from the
employee’s pay.

For employees that receive health insurance from another source and decline
health insurance for themselves and any dependents, the district will provide a
$250/month payment to assist with outside insurance costs. Eligibility for this
health insurance payment is defined in SOP XXXX

Dental & Vision Insurance

§.2.1

Dental

Full-time employees and their legal dependents, as defined by the State of
California and the Internal Revenue Service, are eligible to participate in a group
dental plan selected by the District. The District shall pay the actual premium
charged by the approved dental insurance provider for providing coverage to the
employees and their dependents under the terms of the plan.



3.3

5.4

3.3

5.6

3.7

5.2.2 Vision

Full-time employees and their legal dependents, as defined by the State of
California and (he Internal Revenue Service, are eligible to participate in a group
vision plan selected by the District. The District shall pay the actual premium
charged by the approved vision insurance provider for providing coverage to the
employees and their dependents under the terms of the plan.

Deferred Compensation

The District shall offer the employees a deferred compensation plan under IRS
Regulation 457. The district shall make no contribution to said plan.

Retirement

34.1

542

54.3

The District shall provide Classic employees with 3% @ 55 plan, formula
(Classic PERS). Classic employees shall pay 9% employee coniributien ot
applicable compensation.

The District shall provide PEPRA. employees, hired after January 1, 2013 with
2.7% @ 57 plan, formula (PEPRA Members). PEPRA employees shall pay
12.75% employee contribution of applicable compensation.

Retirement benefits for all employees covered in this Memorandum of
Understanding shall be stated in the California Public Employee’s Retirement
System Benefit Summary for each of the above plans.

Holidays

All employees will be paid 24 hours overtime if their regularly scheduled day worked
falls on one of the following holidays:

New Years Day

Martin Luther King’s Birthday
Lincoln’s Birthday (February 12'%)
Washington’s Birthday (February 22"9)
Easter

Memorial Day

July 4™

Labor Day

. Veteran’s Day

10. Thanksgiving

11. Christmas

Rl ol

Uniforms

Uniforms will be provided to all Association members per Gold Ridge SOP 2-09.

Leave of Absence



5.7.1 Personal Leave
5.7.1.1 Altemative Leave

Employees shall receive twenty-four (24) hours of Alternative Leave per
calendar year. The Alternative Leave hours may be used at the employee’s
discretion, subject to scheduling considerations of the District. Alternative
Leave will not accumulate and can only be used within the calendar year it
was received, Alternative Leave must be used in a whole twenty-four {24)
hour block.

Alternate leave shall be paid by salary and not drawn from vacation or
sick hours

5.7.1.2 Bereavement Leave

Dereavement Leave 18 intended tor use after the death of immediate family
member, live-in or domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or in-law.

An employee shall advise the on duty-chief officer as soon as possible, but
ne later than one (1) hour prior to the beginning of shift.

The employee will be allowed up to two (2) shifis (for 24-hour shift
employees) or three (3) days (for 40-hour employees) per event; for
example the employee may choose to use 24 hours immediately after the
death and an additional 24 hours when setrvices are held or any
combination thereof.

Bereavement leave shall be paid by salary and not drawn from vacation or
sick hours.

5.7.2 Sick Leave

5.7.2.1 Sick leave is an absence from work due to non-industrial illness or injury
to an employee.

Sick leave may also include absence due to the birth of an employee’s
child, or iliness or injury to a family member. Family members are the
employee’s child, mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother,
sister, grandparents, step parents, foster parents or any close relative
residing in the employee’s household.

Non-industrial illness or injury does not include injury or illness suffered
in the course and scope of employment for the District or any other person
or entity.

5.7.2.2 Accruoal



Sk 3

All personnel assigned to 56-hour schedule shall accrue twelve (12) hours
per month of sick leave. All personnel assigned to 40-hour schedule shall
accrue twelve (8) hours per month of sick leave.

5.7.2.3 Use
Personnel shall use sick leave at the rate of one hour for each hour off

Employees must report sick leave absences at least one (1) hour in
advance of the start of their shift to Company Officer at the staffing station
or on-duty Battalion Chief.

5.7.2.4 Sick Leave Payoff at Retirement

Employees who retire or whose positions are eliminated and who have
completed 5 consecutive years of employment with the district shall
receive payment for one-half (1/2) of any accumulated but unused sick
leave up to a maximum of (720) hours. The rale of pay shall be the
regular hourly rate of pay at the time the position is vacated.

5.7.2.5 Sick Leave Payoff Due to Death

Survivor(s) of each employee separated from the District service by death
shall be entitled to payment at such employee’s hourly rate of pay for one-
half (1/2) of any accumulated but unused sick leave up to a maximum of
(720) hours. The rate of pay shall be the regular hourly rate of pay at the
time the position is vacated.

NEW PARENT LEAVE ACT

State Eligible employees may take parental leave up to 12 weeks to bond with a
new child within one year of the child’s birth, adoption, or foster care placement.

The employee shall be able to utilize accrued vacation pay. paid sick time, other
accrued paid time off, or other paid or unpaid time off negotiated with the District
during the period of parental leave. Paid leave will be taken at the employee’s
discretion from sick or vacation leave.

If both parents are employed by the District and both qualify for the requested
leave, the leave is limited to 12 weeks combined.

Employees eligible for both FMLA and CFRA are not eligible for parental leave
(Government Code § 12945.6).



5.74 Leave-of-Absence Without Pay

Under exceptional circumstances, the Fire Chief may, on written request,
authorize a Jeave-or-absence without pay or benefits in accordance with federal
law.

5.8 Vacation

5.8.1

5.8.2

583

584

Vacation Accrual shall occur at the rates below. If an employee separates from the
district but returns within 18 months, then the cumulative ime worked before and
after the separation will be applied to Years of Service.

Years of Service Hours Accrued per Month

536-hour employees  40-hour emplovees

(-5 12 9

6-10 i8 14

11-15 22 17

16 or more 26 20
Vacation Rate

5.8.2.1 56-Hour Personnel

Twenty-four (24) hours equals one (1) shift.
5.8.2.2 40-Hour Personnel

One (1) hour off will be charged at one (1) howur of vacation.
Vacation Use
All personnel shall use vacation leave at a rate of one hour for each hour off.
Payout Upon Separation

For purposes of remuneration, at time of separation, employees will be credited at
their hourly rate of pay for accrned hours of vacation.

10



5.85

5.8.6

381

Employees shall be compensated for unused vacation at the time of separation
from the District either as monetary remuneration or as compensatory time off
upon the agreement of both parties.

Anniversary Date

An Employee’s anniversary date will be considered as the first (1*) of the month
in which the employee became a full-time permanent employee. Date of
promotion (Lieutenants, and Engineers) will establish a new anniversary date at
the time of promotion.

Maximum Allowable Accumulated Vacation

Vacation accrual shall be capped at two years at the maximum rate of accrual
(624 Hours)

Vacation may be donated by employees to each other for the purpose of trades or
assistance to a coworker experiencing prolonged illness or injury.

SECTION 6 QUALIFICATIONS & CERTIFICATIONS

6.1 EMT Requirement

All members must possess and maintain a valid EMT certification at all times and as a
condition of employment. If the member fails to maintain certification, the member will
be placed on unpaid leave (or allowed to use any accrued vacation time) until such time
as they can regain their EMT certification for a period not to exceed six (6) months. If the
EMT certification has not been regained after six (6) months, the District reserves the
right to administratively disqualify and release the member from employment in
accordance with procedures established in the firefighter Procedural Bill of Rights.

As a courtesy, the District will track the employee’s expiration of certification and
provide a reminder to the employee three (3) months in advance of the expiration date
and reasonable accommodation for recertification.

6.2 Drivers License

All members are required to possess DMV licensure (as appropriate for the employee’s
position), at all times during employment as a condition of employment. If the member
fails to maintain licensure, the member will be placed on unpaid leave (or allowed to use
any accrued vacation time) until such time they can regain their license for a period not to
exceed six (6) months. If the license has not been regained after six (6) months, the

11



6.3

District reserves the right to administratively disqualify and release the member from
employment in accordance with procedures established in the firefighter Procedural Bill
of Rights.

As a courtesy the District will track the employee’s expiration of certification and
provide a reminder to the employee three (3) months in advance of the expiration date
and reasonable accommodation for recertification.

Position Contipuity in the Event of Merger

In a case of a merger or annexation, employees will retain current positions while
assigned to Gold Ridge stations. Employees may be posted to new district stations and
will retain position but if additional training, classes, etc. are required to meet new district
requirements, then the cost of this training or overtime will be covered by the fire district.

SECTION 7 SENIORITY

7.1

72

7.3

Seniority

Seniority for competitive purposes (e.g. vacation selections, layoffs, etc) is defined as the
total length of full-time continuous service with the Gold Ridge Fire Protection District.
In a case of a merger or annexation, the full-time hire date of the predecessor agency.

7.1.1 Seniority used for station Bids in Section 4.4 will be date of promotion
(Licutenants and Engineers) or date of hire for Firefighters.

7.1.2  In the event of identical promotional/hire dates, testing rank for employees
evaluated in the same hiring test will be utilized for determining seniority.

Continuity of Service
Continuity of service will not be broken and seniority will accrue where an employee:

e [s inducted, enlists, or is called to active duty in the Armed Forces of the
United States or service in the Merchant Marines, under any Act of
Congress which provides that the employee is entitled to re-employment
rights.

e Is on duty with the National Guard.

e s absent due to lay-off for a period of less than 2 years.

Layoff

In case of personnel reduction, the employee with the least seniority will be laid off first.
If an eliminafed position is reestablished within 24 months from the date of layoff, the
laid-off employee shall have a right to reinstaternent with only pre-employment fit for
duty exam pursuant to NFPA 1582.

12



SECTION 8 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

8.1

PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy establishes processes for resolving disputes or concerns regarding conditions
of employment, unethical, wasteful or other inappropriate conduct.

This policy does not apply to complaints related fo alleged acts of discrimination or
harassment or complaints of discrimination on the basis of other protected categories
subject to the Discriminatory Harassment Policy. This policy also does not apply to
complaints consisting of any alleged misconduct or improper job performance by any
member that, if true, would constitute a violation of federal, state or local law, or a
violation of department policy or the standards established in the Personnel Complaints
Policy.

This policy does not prohibit adverse administrative action taken for legitimate non-
discriminatory or non-retaliatory reasons, including for-cause discipline.

The procedures set forth herein are intended to supplement and not limit a member’s
access to other applicable remedies. Nothing in this policy shall diminish the rights or
remedies of a member pursuant to any applicable federal law, provision of the U.8.
Constitution, state law, local ordinance or coliective bargaining agreement.

8.1.1 GRIEVANCE DEFINED

A grievance is any difference of opinion concerning terms or conditions of
employment or the dispute involving the interpretation or application of
any of the following documents:

o A collective bargaining agreement

o Department Policy and Procedures Manual

@ Rules and regulations covering personnel practices or working
conditions of members

A grievance includes any claim of waste, abuse of authority, gross
mismanagement and any practice within the Department which may pose
a threat to health, safety or security.

Grievances may be brought by an individual member or by a group
representative.

82 POLICY

It is the policy of this department that all grievances be handled quickly and fairly
without retaliation against a member who files a grievance, whether or not there is

13



8.3

8.4

a basis for the grievance. It is the philosophy of this depariment to promote free
verbal communication between members and supervisors.

RETALIATION PROHIBITED

No member may retaliate against any person for reporting or making a complaint
under this policy or for opposing a practice believed to be improper, unethical,
wasteful, retaliatory or participating in any investigation pursuant to this policy or
any other policy in this policy manual.

Employees found to be in violation of this policy are subject to discipline.
Supervisors who condone or ignore violations of this policy or otherwise fail o
take appropriate action to enforce this policy are also subject to discipline.

PROCEDURE

Lxcept as otherwise required under a colleetive bargaining agreement, gricvances
as defined above, should be resolved using the following procedure.

8.4.1

8.4.2

COMMUNICATING GRIEVANCES

Members are encouraged to communicate with command
personnel regarding any workplace problem or issue they feel
needs immediate attention. Generally, any concern about a
workplace situation should be first raised with the member’s
immediate supervisor unless that supervisor is part of the
member’s concern. It is recognized, however, that there may be
occasions where the use of the normal chain of command may not
be appropriate.

Any member who feels threatened in any manner or is otherwise
concerned about reporting to his/ her immediate supervisor may
report this information directly to the Fire Chief or Administration
without first reporting the information to their immediate
supervisor or following the chain of command.

This alternate process shall not be used to circumvent or avoid
addressing issues through the normal chain of command.

GRIEVANCE RECEIPT

Upon receipt of an oral or written grievance, the receiving
supervisor will promptly document the grievance, initiate the
investigative process and ensure that the appropriate supervisor
and the Administration are notified.

Investigations are generally more effective when the identity of the
grieving member is known, thereby allowing investigators to
obtain additional information from the reporting member.
However, a grievance may be made anonymously.

14



843

All reasonable efforts should be made to protect the reporting
member’s identity. However, confidential information may be
disclosed to the extent required by law or to the degree necessary
to conduct an adequate investigation and make a determination
regarding a grievance. In some situations, the investigative process
may not be complete unless the source of the information and a
statement by the member is produced as part of the process.

The supervisor receiving the grievance should explain to the
grieving member how the matter will be handled.

RESOLVING GRIEVANCES

{2) Supervisors receiving grievances should attempt to resolve the
issue through informal discussion with member.

{b) Il alter a reasonable amount of time, generally seven days, the
grievance cannot be settled by the immediate supervisor, the
member may request a meeting with the Battalion Chief.

(c) If a successful resolution is not found with the Battalion Chief,
the member may request a meeting with the Fire Chief.

(d) If the member and the Fire Chief are unable to arrive at a
mutual solution, then the member shall proceed as follows:

1. Submit in writing a written staternent of the grievance
and deliver one copy to the Fire Chief and another copy fo
the immediate supervisor and include the following
information:

(2) The basis for the grievance
(b} What remedy or goal is being sought by this grievance

(e) The Fire Chief will receive the grievance in writing. The Fire
Chief and the District executive will review and analyze the facts
or ellegations and respond to the member within 14 calendar days.
The response shall identify any corrective measures or other
remedies as appropriate. The decision of the District executive is
considered final.

8.5 RESPONSIBILITIES
MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES

8.5.1

This policy is intended to support efforts to identify and remediate when
appropriate, workplace issues. Members are encouraged to identify
workplace issues to bring about positive change in the Department.

i5



8.5.2

8.5.3

Members shall act in good faith and not file trivial grievances or
grievances intended to harass or deflect scrutiny or blame to another.

Members shall make reasonable efforts to verify facts before making a
grievance. Members shall not report or threaten to report information or a
grievance knowing it to be false, with willful or reckless regard for the
truth or falsity of the information or otherwise made in bad faith.

When making a grievance, members should provide as much information
as possible and should cooperate fully with all investigations. Members
shall maintain the confidentiality of any statements made in conjunction
with an active grievance pursuant to this policy. This provision is not
intended to diminish a member’s rights or remedies afforded by applicable
federal law, constitutional provision or collective bargaining agreement.

Any employee who believes that he/she has been subjected to reprisal or
retaliation should immediately report the matter to a supervisor in the
member’s chain of command or to the Administration.

SUPERVISORS

Supervisors should make reasonable efforts to identify and remediate
workplace issues and bring about positive change in the Department
before issues escalate to the grievance level. Once a member has made the
decision to file a grievance, supervisors shall not attempt to discourage the
member, shall accept grievances and shall ensure that reasonable efforts
are made to reach a prompt and fair resolution.

Supervisory personnel wili:

{a) Document all grievances received and all steps taken to resolve
the issue.

(b) Forward the documentation to the Administration Division
Chief through the chain of command.

(c) Monitor the work environment to ensure that any member
making a grievance is treated with respect and no differently than
non-complaining employees.

(d) Communicate to all members the obligation not to engage in
retaliation and follow-up periodically with the grieving member to
ensure that retaliation is not occurring.

COMMAND STAFF

Command staff should ensure prompt resolution of all grievances,
including the following:

(a) Timely grievance recognition and acceptance

16



(b) Appropriate documentation of the process and investigation

(¢} Remediation of any inappropriate conduct or condition and the
implementation of measures to minimize the likelihcod of
reoceurrence

{(d) Timely cormmunication of the outcome to the grieving member
8.6 MEMBER REPRESENTATION

Members are entitled to have representation during the grievance process and may
seek advice, counsel or the assistance of other employees or representatives in
their presentation of a grievance.

8.7  GRIEVANCE RECORDS

At the conclusion of the grievance process, all documents pertaining to the
process shall be forwarded to the Administration Division Chicf.

88 GRIEVANCE AUDITS

The Administration Division Chief or the authorized designee should perform an
annual andit of all grievances filed the previous calendar year to evaluate whether
any policy, procedure or training changes may be appropriate. The Administration
Division Chief shall record these findings in a confidential memorandum to the
Fire Chief without including any identifying information from any individual
grievance.

SECTION $ PEACEFUL RESOLUTION OF DIFFERENCES

Both parties recognize the desirability of continuous and uninterrupted operation of the District
during the term of this contract and the avoidance of disputes which threaten to interfere with
such operation. Since the partied are establishing a comprehensive grievance procedure under
which unresolved disputes may be settled, the parties have removed the basic cause to work
interruptions during the period of this Memorandum of Understanding.

The Association accordingly agrees that during the period this Memorandum of Understanding,
no strikes of any kind shall be caused or sanctioned by the Association.

The District agrees that no lockouts of employees shall be instituted by the District during the
term of this Memorandum of Understanding.

SECTION 10 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

17



10.1  The District, on its own behalf and on the behalf of the taxpayers of the District, hereby
retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and
responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the
State of California and of the United Stated, including but not without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the right:

10.1.1 To exercise executive management and administrative control of the District and
its properties and facilities, and the duties of its employees during the hours of
work.

10.1.2 To hire all employees and subjects to the provision of the law, to determine their
qualifications and the conditions of their continued employment or their dismissal
and/or assign and transfer such employees.

10.1.3 The exercise of the forgoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities
by the District, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in
furtherance thereof, and the use of judgement and discretion 1 connection
therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms hereof, and the
Constitution and laws of the Unifed States.

SECTION 11 SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any provision of this Memorandum of Understanding is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable
by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such provision shail be
separable, the remainder of this agreement shall not be affected thereby.

SECTION 12 TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective as of the date signed and shall remain in
full force and effect until December 31 2020, unless the District and Association agree, in
writing, sixty (60} days prior {o the expiration date, to continue the Memorandum.

SECTION 13 FULL UNDERSTANDING CLAUSE

This Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the full and entire understanding of the partied
regarding the matters set forth herein; and any other prior or existing understanding or
agreements by the partied, whether formal or informal, regarding any such matters are hereby
suspended or terminated in their entirety, if they conflict with this Memorandum of
Understanding.

18



It is agreed and understood that each party hereto veluntarily waives its right to negotiate and
agrees that the other party shall not be required to negotiate, with respect to any matter covered
herein during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding. However, in the event of fiscal or
operational crisis that could result in layoff of personnel and/or changes in statutory or decisional
law, the District may implement change only after exhausting all obligations of meet and confer.

Nothing herein shall preclude or limit the District from making changes in matters not covered
by the Memorandum but within the scope of representation. If the District intends to make such
changes, it will give prior notice to the Association and an opportunify to meet and confer over

said changes.

Nothing in this section shall preclude the parties from jointly agreeing to meet and confer on an
issue(s) within the scope of representation during the term of this Memorandum of

Understanding,

15



EMR

ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT COVERAGE AGREEMENT

THIS ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT COVERAGE
AGREEMENT is made and entered into January 1, 2021
(“Effective Date”) between American Medical Response
West (“AMR™) and Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
(“Agency”). This Agreement supersedes any previous
agreement between AMR and the Agency and serves and
the sole contractual agreement between the two parties for
term of services.

WHEREAS, the Agency is a political subdivision of the
State;

WHEREAS, AMR is a licensed provider of high quality
advanced life support (“ALS™) with the capability to
provide ALS coverage within the Agency’s jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, AMR is contracted to provide ALS
Emergency Ground Ambulance Services to the County of
Sonoma per the Exclusive Operating Areas Agreement
dated December 31, 2008;

WHEREAS, in order to assure that residents and visitors
within the Agency’s jurisdiction receive appropriate ALS
services when required as a result of injury or illness, the
Agency desires to retain AMR to provide additional
coverage within the Agency jurisdiction and AMR desires
to provide such ALS coverage, subject to the terms and
conditions specified herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Coverage Area and Services. The Agency
hereby retains AMR to provide ALS coverage (the
“Services”) within the Agency geographic area (the
“Service Area”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, AMR
may enter into subcontracts and mutual aid agreements
with licensed ambulance providers, as deemed necessary
by AMR to insure adequate coverage throughout the
Service Area. AMR will staff the following unit for
deployment within at Agency Station #2: one (1) advanced
life support ambulance 24/7/365 staffed with an emergency
medical technician and paramedic. This unit may be
repositioned from time-to-time and may provide services
within the Service Area and outside the Service Area.

2. Standards. The Services shall be provided
in accordance with prevailing industry standards of quality
and care applicable to medical transportation services.

3. Emergency Medical Services Schedule of
Charges and Billing. AMR will be responsible for billing
and collections for all Services provided by AMR. Billing
and settlement of claims will be at the sole discretion of
AMR. Notwithstanding the foregoing, AMR will use
reasonable efforts to establish payment plans for
individuals with limited means and will consider “charity
care” on a case-by-case basis for individuals who do not
have the means to pay for the Services, all consistent with
current practices and policies of AMR. AMR will adhere
to the Sonoma County published rates when it bills for
emergency medical services within the Service Area.
AMR will accept all calls without regard to gender, race,
religion, age, nationality or ability to pay.

4. Agency Contribution. During the Term, the
Agency will make an annual payment to AMR (the
“Agency Contribution™) for purposes of offsetling the
expenses of providing the Services described herein  The
Agency Confribution shall be payable to AMR in equal
monthly installments beginning January I, 2021 and being
due on the first of each month thereafter. The annual
Agency Contribution shall be: two hundred fifty thousand
dollars ($250,000.00).

The Agency Contribution shall increase on each
anniversary date of this Agreement equal to the percentage
increase in the Medical CPI during the most recent 12
month period for which published figures are available
from the U.S. Department of Labor. “Medical CPI” as used
above shall mean the medical care consumer price index
(consisting of medical care commodities and medical care
services) for national All Urban Consumers (“CPI-U"), or
the most comparable successor index if such index is
discontinued, with a minimum increase of four percent
(4.00%).

5. Facilities. Agency licenses AMR to right to use the
Agency Station #2 located at 1690 Watertrough Road,
Sebastopol, CA 95472 for stationing, quartering and
parking ambulances used in the provision of Services
pursuant to this Agreement. The license shall be without
charge or rent to AMR.

6. Indemnification. Neither party agrees to
indemnify or hold harmless the other party. However, to
the extent provided by law, each party will be responsible
for its own acts or omissions and any and all claims,
liabilities, injuries, suits, and demands and expenses of all
kinds which may result from or arise out of any alleged
malfeasance or neglect caused or alleged to have been
caused by that party, its employees or representatives, in
the performance or omission of any act of responsibility of
that party under this Agreement. In the event that a claim
is made against both parties, it is the intent of both parties



to cooperate in the defense of said claim and to cause their
insurers to do likewise. However, both parties shall have
the right to take any and all actions they belfeve necessary
to protect their interest. This provision shall survive the
termination of this agreement.

7. Insurance. AMR represents that it has and will
maintain ~ comprehensive  automobile  insurance,
comprehensive  general  liability insurance, and
professional liability insurance all in minimum amounts
that are customary and usual within the medical
transportation industry and workers’ compensation
insurance in the statutory required amounts.

8. Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall
be for one year (I} from the Effective Date. This
Agreement will automatically renew for successive one {1}
year period subject to the termination righis herein. The
initial lerm and all renewal periods shall be cumulatively
referred to as the “Term™.

9. Termination.  Either party may terminate this
Agreement: (a) at any time without cause and at its sole
discretion upon one-hundred twenty (120) days written
notice to the other party; or (b) upon the material breach of
this Agreement by the other party if such breach is not
cured within sixty (60} days of written notice thereof to the

other party.

10. Relationship. In the performance of this
Agreement, each party hereto shall be, as to the other, an
independent contractor and neither party shall have the
right or authortity, express or implied, to bind or otherwise
legally obligate the other. Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed to constifuie either party
assuming or underfaking conirol or direction of the
operations, activities or medical care rendered by the other.
AMR and Agency administrative staff shall meet on 2
regular basis to address issues of mutual concern related to
the provision of Services and the parties® respective rights
and obligations hereunder.

11. Laws and Regulatory. The Parties: (a) will
comply in all material respects with all applicable federal,
state and local laws and regulations including, the federal
Anti-kickback statute; (b) represent and warrant that it is
not the intent of either parfy that any remuneration, benefit
or privilege provided for under this Agreement shall
influence or in any way be based on the referral or
recommmended referral by either party of patients to the
other party or its affiliated providers, if any, or the
purchasing, leasing or ordering of any services other than
the specific services described in this Agreement and any
remuneration set forth in this Agreement is fair market
value and negotiated at arm-Iength; (¢} will comply with
the provisions under the Health Insurance Portability and

Accountability Act of 1996 and its regulations; (d)
acknowledge that if it is a cost reporting entity that it has
been informed of, and will fully and accurately account for,
and report on its applicable cost report, the total value of
any discount, rebate or other compensation paid pursuant
to this Agreement im a way that complies with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations that
establish a “Safe Harbor® for discounts; {e) represent and
warrant that neither it nor any practitioner who orders or
provides services on its behalf has been convicted of any
conduct that constitutes grounds for mandatory exclusion
under any federal or state law and each party further
represents and warrants that it is not ineligible to
participate in federal or state health care programs or in any
other federal or state government payment program; (f)
will make available to the other a copy of its code of
conduct, anti-kickback policies and other compliance
policies, as may be changed from time-to-time; (g)
represents and wattants that osithet il ot sy of ils officers
or directors have been convicted of a crime against them
for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, affempting to obfain, or
performing a public (federal, state, or local) contract or
subcontract; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes
relating te the submission of offers; commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, fax
evasion, or receiving stolen property; (h) represent and
warrant that it and its personnel are and, shall at all times
during the term of this Agreement be, properly
credentialed, licensed, certified and in good standing in
accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws
and regulations; and (i) will notify the other party
immediately but no less than five (5) days of any actual
knowledge contrary to the requirements set forth in this
section.

12. Miscellaneous. This Agreement: {a) constitutes
the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter, superseding all prior oral or written
agreements with respect to the subject matter; (b) may be
amended only by written instrument executed by both
parties; (¢} may not be assigned by either party without the
written consent of the other party (except to affiliates,
parents or subsidiaries), such comsent not to be
unreasonably withheld; {d) shall be binding on and inure to
the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and permitted assigps; (e) shall be interpreted and enforced
in accordance with the laws of the state where the services
are rendered, without regard to the conflict of laws
provisions thereof, and the federal laws of the United States
applicable therein; () this Agreement may be executed in
several counterparts (including by DocuSign or other
electronic means), each of which shall constitute an
original and all of which, when taken together, shall
constitute one agreement; (g) this Agreement shall not be

Proprielary and Confidential
Page 2 of 3



effective until executed by both Parties; (h) if any term or
provision of this Agreement is declared to be illegal,
invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the illegality, invalidity or
unenforceability shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of this Agreement, and to the exient permitted
by applicable law, any such term or provision shall be
restricted in applicability or reformed to the minimun
extent for such to be enforceable; and (i} except as
otherwise provided herein, no waiver of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall be valid or effective
unless in writing and signed by the Parties hereto; and no
waiver of any breach or condition of this Agreement shall
be deemed to be a continuing walver or a waiver of any
other breach or condition. The Parties represent and
warrant that they have not relied upon any prior or
contemporaneous  writings, negotiations, proposals,
agreements, communications, discussions or
representations. EACII TARTY I1IERETO [IIEREDY
IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY SUIT, ACTION OR
PROCEEDING BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND
ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

13. Notices. Amy notice required or permitted by this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered as
follows, with notice deemed given as indicated: (a) by
personal delivery, when delivered pessonally; (b) by
overnight courier then upon delivery thereof as confirmed
by such service; {c) by email fransmission; or (d) if mailed

within the United States, 3 days after deposit in the United
States mails, postage prepaid, certified mail return receipt
requested. Notice shall be sent io the following addresses:

If to Agency:

Fire Chief

Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
4500 Hessel Road

Sebastopol, California 95472

Ifto AMR:

Regional Director

American Medical Response
930 South A Street

Santa Rosa, CA 95404

With Mandatory Copy to:

Law Department

American Medical Respense, Inc.

6363 S. Fiddler's Green Circle 15" Floor
Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111

By signing below, each Party acknowledges that they have carefully read and fully understand this Agreement. Each
Party each fully agrees to be bound by the terms of this Agreement.

American Medical Response West

By:

Sean Russell, Region President

Gold Ridge Fire Protection District

By:

Shepley Schroth-Cary, Fire Chief

Proprietary and Confidential
Pape 3 of 3



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

IN THE MATTER OF: Resolution Number: 20/21-03

Approving the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection Agreement #7FG20046 for services from the date of last
signatory on page 1 of the Agreement to June 30, 2021 under the Volunteer Fire Assistance Program of the Cooperative
Forestry Assistance Act of 1978.

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT,
that said Board does hereby approve the Agreement with the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection dated
as of the last signatory date on page 1 of the Agreement, and any amendments thereto. This Agreement provides for an
award, during the term of this Agreement, under the Volunteer Fire Assistance Program of the Cooperative Fire
Assistance Act of 1978 during the State Fiscal Year 2020-21 up to and no more than the amount of $20,000.

BE IT EURTEER RESOLVED that _Shepley Schroth-Cary, Fire Chief of said Board be and heraby is
authorized to sign and execute said Agreement and any amendments on behalf of the
GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT.

The foregoing resolution was duly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the
GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, at a regular meeting thereof, held on the _2*% day of
December, 2020 , by the following vote:

AYES:

Signature, Board of Directors Member
MAYS:

Robert Gloeckner, Chairman of the Board
ABSENT: Printed Name and Title

Signature, Board of Directors Member

Charles Lachman. Director
Printed Name and Title

——--CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION-----~
ATTEST:

1 Leslie MeCormick  , Clerk ofthe _ GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
County of SONOMA, California do hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of the original
Resolution Number __20/21-03 .,

WITNESS MY HAND OR THE SEAL OF THE GOLD RIDGE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT . on
this 2™ day of __December . 2020

OFFICIAL SEAL
OR NOTARY CERTIFICATON

Signature

Clerk of the Board, Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
Title and Name of Local Agency




